ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 19, 2007
3:05 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representati ve Jay Ranras
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner
VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI R(VATI ON HEARI NE S)

Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Labor & Wbrkforce Devel opnent

Clark “dick” Bishop — Fairbanks
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Comm ssioner, Departnment of Commerce, Conmunity, & Economc
Devel opnent

Em | Notti - Anchorage

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
HOUSE BI LL NO. 182
"An Act nmaking the offering of certain pronotional checks an
unfair or deceptive act or practice.”

- MOVED HB 182 OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 136
"An Act relating to dental hygienists.”

- MOVED HB 136 OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 19, 2007



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

Bl LL: HB 182
SHORT TITLE: OFFERI NG PROMOTI ONAL CHECKS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LYNN

03/ 07/ 07 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 07/ 07 (H L&C, JUD
03/ 19/ 07 (H L&C AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 136
SHORT TI TLE. DENTAL HYG ENI STS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) STOLTZE

02/ 14/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 14/ 07 (H HES, L&C

03/ 06/ 07 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 06/ 07 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 06/ 07 (H M NUTE( HES)

03/ 07/ 07 (H) HES RPT 5DP

03/ 07/ 07 (H DP: ClI SSNA, FAI RCLOUGH, GARDNER, ROSES,
W LSON

03/ 07/ 07 (H FI' N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER L&C

03/ 19/ 07 (H L&C AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 182.

CLYDE (ED) SNIFFEN, J.R, Assistant Attorney General

Commer ci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

Cvil Division (Anchorage)

Departnment of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answer ed questions and provided comments
during hearing on HB 182.

MARI E DARLI N, Coor di nat or

Capital Gty Task Force

Al aska AARP

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 182 and HB 136.

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL STOLTZE
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 19, 2007



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 136.

BEN MULLI GAN, St aff

to Representative Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions during hearing on HB
136.

GAI L WALDEN, Dental Hygienist;

Member

Al aska State Dental Hygienists’ Association (ASHDA)
Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 136.

| VONNE M LLEA, President

Al aska State Dental Hygienists’ Association (ASHDA)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 136.

JENNI FER MCELROY, Dental Hygi eni st;

Pr esi dent

Kenai Peni nsul a Dental Hygi ene Associ ation

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 136.

GLENN MARTI N, DDS
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 136

ROYANN ROYER, Dental Hygieni st
Chugi ak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 136

DAVI D LOGAN, DDS

Member

Al aska Dental Society (ADS)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 136 and offered
coment s.

MARY CERNEY, Dental Hygieni st

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 136 and offered
conment s.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- March 19, 2007



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee nmeeting to order at 3:05:01 PM Representatives Buch

Neurman, Gardner, Gatto, and O son were present at the call to
order. Representatives Ranras and LeDoux arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

CONFI RMATI ON HEARI NG&( S)

Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Labor & Wbrkforce Devel opnent

Conmi ssioner, Departnent of Commerce, Community, & Economc
Devel opnent

3:05: 14 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
the consideration of appointees to various boards and
conmi SSi ons.

3: 05: 35 PM

CHAIR OLSON made a notion to advance the confirmations of C ark
“Cick” Bishop as Conmm ssioner of the Departnment of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnment, and Em | Notti as Conmm ssioner of the
Department of Commerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent, to
the joint floor session for consideration. There being no
obj ection, the confirmations were advanced.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from3:05 PMto 3: 07 PM

HB 182- OFFERI NG PROMOTI ONAL CHECKS

CHAI R CLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 182, "An Act making the offering of certain
pronoti onal checks an unfair or deceptive act or practice.”

3:07:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN, Alaska State Legislature, Sponsor,
stated that HB 182 deals with pronotional checks. He expl ai ned
that these checks are often for as little as $3 or $4, and are
sent to thousands of businesses and individuals across the
state. Hundreds of these checks are cashed. These checks are
legitimate, which he opined is both good and bad. Unsuspecti ng
i ndividuals endorse these checks, and are then obligated for
unwant ed products and services. Last year, the Departnent of
Law (DOL) announced a settlenent wth a California based

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 19, 2007



conpany, Yellow Pages, Inc. He explained that Yellow Pages,
Inc. sent what appeared to be a rebate check for $3.49, but was
actually a contract for advertising services totaling $179.
Consuners did not see the financial disclosure in fine print on
the reverse of the check. Al aska, along with 27 other states,
eventually settled with the aforenentioned conpany, which was
forced to give refunds to consuners, in addition to covering
attorney costs and consuner protection enforcenment costs. These
checks are sent out to individuals and businesses. Wen cashed,
consuners are billed, and nmay be “hounded” by collection

agenci es. The [Commercial/Fair Business Section] of the DCL
considers these checks to be a classic exanple of an unfair or
deceptive act of practice, as defined in state |aw AS
45.50. 471 defines an “unfair or deceptive trade practice” as
“Conduct t hat creates a I'ikelihood of conf usi on or

m sunder st andi ng, which m sl eads, deceives, or damges a buyer
or conpetitor wth a sale or advertisenent of goods or
services.” He stated that these checks fit this definition, and
opined that HB 182 “is a fitting answer to this ... poor
busi ness practice.” The DOL believes that prohibiting the use
of these checks is the only effective way to prevent these
accidental agreenents from occurring. He stated that HB 182
makes these “pronotional checks” an unfair or deceptive act or
practice in violation of the Unfair Trade Practices and Consuner
Protection Act (Consuner Protection Act). This would enable the
Attorney General to enforce the renedies afforded in the
Consuner Protection Act. Conpanies that violate this |law would
be subject to a civil penalty of a mninmm of $1,000 per
viol ation, and a maxi mum of $25, 000 per viol ation.

3:12:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN stated that he has been affected by the
af orenenti oned pronotional checks issued by Yell ow Pages, Inc

He inquired as to whether HB 182 applies to bl ank checks stating
that an individual has been approved for $30,000 or $50, 000,
whi ch can be signed and taken to the bank.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN replied that the aforenentioned checks are
not affected by this |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked if the sponsor has considered adding
this.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN shared his wish that this be considered as a

separate piece of legislation, as he would prefer not to extend
the scope of this bill.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 19, 2007



The comm ttee took an at-ease from3:13 PMto 3:14 PM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN explained that there is an anendnent
addressing the aforenentioned checks, which will be offered in
the next commttee of referral.

3:14: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX expressed appreciation for this
| egi sl ati on. She then shared an experience with receiving this
type of check, and how she dealt with it.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated that he introduced the bill after the
i ssue was brought to his attention by the DO.. He expressed his
appreciation for this being brought forward by the departnent.

3:15:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that she has also seen these
checks. She opined that this is a clear attenpt to "trick
people.” She expressed appreciation for the conprehensive scope

of the information contained in the conmttee packet.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said that the question and answer sheet was
devel oped by his staff.

REPRESENTATI VE  GARDNER commented that the aforenentioned
guestion and answer sheet addressed all of her questions. She
stated that there nmay be legitimte practices, as well, such as
credit card conpanies that are attenpting to get a consuner to
switch conpanies. She opined that while this may not be in the
consuner’s best interest, it is not “as deceptive.” There may
be a way to nmake this type of offer to a consuner that is not
deceptive, she said, and inquired as to whether Representative
Lynn woul d agr ee.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN replied that he has seen these types of
offers fromcredit card conpanies.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER reiterated that there is a legitimte way
to do this, and there is a way that is an attenpt to defraud, by
havi ng consunmers sign a contract w thout being aware of it. She
expressed hope that HB 182 does not attack those businesses that
are trying to get new custoners to sign on by using legitimte
practices.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 19, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN assured the conmittee that this is not the
intent of the bill. He opined there are honest and di shonest
ways to do business, and that the pronotional checks in question
are di shonest.

3:17:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO questioned whether sinply cashing a check
is a contract.

3:18: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH shared his understanding that the contract
agreenent is on the back of the check, and is considered a |egal
bi ndi ng contract.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO surmi sed, then, that this contract 1is
enforceable, and the signature on the check is considered the
signature on the contract.

CHAI R OLSON noted that the DOL is online to answer questions.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN comented that this could be considered and
“illusory contract.”

3:20: 02 PM

CLYDE (ED) SNI FFEN, J.R, Assi st ant At t or ney Ceneral ,
Commercial/Fair Business Section, Cvil D vision (Anchorage),
Department of Law, explained that his duties include enforcenent
of Al aska’s consuner protection statutes. He thanked
Representative Lynn for introducing this |egislation. The DOL
is concerned about this issue, which occurs often in Al aska. He
stated that these checks have generated many conpl aints. He

stated that while those who are sending the checks out could
argue that the terns were clear, the question is whether or not
the terms of the agreenent were adequately discl osed.
Pronotional checks may | ook |like a refund or a rebate, and once
signed, bills nay appear on a credit card statenent, phone bill
or may be deducted from the individual’s bank account. The DOL
feels that this is a deceptive practice. Consuners do not
understand nor have the intent to enter into a contract;
therefore, these contracts are not enforceable. These checks
are a “headache” for the DOL, and having a specific provision in
t he Consuner Protection Act will make it very clear that this is
a m sl eadi ng and deceptive practice.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 19, 2007



3:23: 00 PM

MR. SNIFFEN, in response to a question from Representative
Neurman, said that he is wunsure where Yellow Pages, Inc

initially gets address and phone information. He surm sed that
this may sinply be from | ooking through the yellow pages in the
phone book. He expl ained that Yellow Pages, Inc. is an online
yel l ow page service, which has no affiliation wth the |ocal
yel | ow pages. However, when people see “Yellow Pages, Inc.” on
the letterhead, they often assune this is connected with a
business ad they have placed in the local yellow pages. He
opi ned that not nany people use the online service offered by
Yel | ow Pages, Inc.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER restated her earlier question regarding
legitimate offers versus attenpts to defraud.

MR. SNIFFEN stated that this legislation is not intended to
apply to legitimte offers. He explained that there is a |ega
di stinction between the two. An exanple of a legitimte offer
woul d be a blank check from a credit card conpany, which are an
extension of an existing line of credit. These are a form of
conveni ence, and are not obligating the consumer to anything
that he or she is not aware of. An additional exanple would be
checks received froma nortgage | ender that are intended to open
up a line of credit against home equity. This bill would not
apply to these offers. \Wether the |anguage of this bill would
enconpass the nortgage l|lending checks is “a tricky question.”
He opined that the Ilanguage could be read as including the
nortgage |ending checks, but would not apply to credit card
conpany checks. He stated that an anmendnent may be introduced
to address this.

3:27:33 PM

MR. SNIFFEN, in response to a question from Representative
Gatto, explained that consuners have called the DOL after
receiving calls from collection agencies. He relayed a story

involving a business in Kodiak that had experienced this. The
DOL wote to the conpany and the noney is being refunded. He
explained that it can be difficult to clear up the credit, once
this occurs. The perpetrating business nust wite a letter to
the credit agency and explain that this was an inadvertent
reporting. In response to an additional question, he stated
that the Fair Credit Reporting Act requires that the business
have a “good faith reason” for reporting an individual to the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 19, 2007



bureau. If this is abused, the ability to report is taken away.
This is in federal statute.

3:30: 37 PM

MARI E DARLIN, Coordinator, Capital Cty Task Force, Al aska AARP
stated that AARP is in support of the bill.

3:32:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report HB 182 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 182 was reported from the
House Labor and Commrerce Standing Commttee.

The conm ttee took an at-ease from3:32 PMto 3:35 PM

HB 136- DENTAL HYQ ENI STS

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BI LL NO. 136, "An Act relating to dental hygienists."

3:35:24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE explained that HB 136 is intended to
bring additional healthcare access to under-served conmmunities.
The House Health, Education and Social Services Standing
Conmmttee considered this bill and addressed several health
rel ated concerns. He opined that this is an inportant issue
noting that many healthcare professionals have been willing to
testify.

3:38:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER opined that this is a good bill. The
state has experienced a shortage of healthcare practitioners in
a range of fields, and needs to explore alternative ways of
provi ding healthcare, particularly in rural ar eas. She
questioned whether the inplenmentation would be different in
rural areas versus urban areas.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE specul ated that the inplenentation would
have a broader application in rural areas of the state.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN inquired as to the definition of “direct
supervision.”

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 19, 2007



3:40: 03 PM

BEN MULLI GAN, Staff to Representative Bill Stoltze, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, sponsor, explained that “direct supervision” means
the dentist is in the sanme room “indirect supervision” means
the dentist is in the sanme facility, and “general supervision”
means the dentist has authorized the procedure and may not be on
t he prem ses.

REPRESENTATI VE  STOLTZE, in response to a question from
Representative Neuman, explained that the dental hygienist
performs basic preventative oral care.

3:42: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS relayed a request to include dental
assistants in HB 136, and inquired as to the difference between
a “dental hygienist” and a “dental assistant.”

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE explained that a “dental hygienist” is
licensed, while “dental assistants” do not have a defined status
in statute.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS expressed further confusion between the
difference between “dental hygienist” and “dental assistant.”
He noted that the bill requires 4,000 hours of practice prior to
a dental hygienist being authorized for general supervision. He
surm sed, then, that a dental assistant is “well below a dental
hygienist in regard to education. He opined that enpowering a
dent al assistant to perform <certain activities currently
performed by dental hygienists [is not w se].

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied that while he does not wish to
conpare the two, there are defined qualification requirenments
for dental hygienists, which he does not believe exist for
dental assistants.

MR. MJILLI GAN expl ained that dental assistants are not required
to be licensed. Classes are offered, but are not required.
Dental assistants are not covered in statute.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS comrented that dental hygienists have a
defined |icensing requirenent.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO shared his understanding that the dental
hygi eni st can offer certain services while the dentist is away,

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- March 19, 2007



while the dental assistant sinply assists the dentist during the
pr ocedure.

3:47: 42 PM
GAIL WALDEN, Dental Hygienist, Menber, Al aska State Dental

Hygi eni sts’ Association (ASDHA), stated that she is in support
of HB 136. She said that the needs of Al askans are not being

met by the current oral healthcare delivery system Current
statute prevents dental hygi enists from providing oral
healthcare in non-traditional settings. She explained that

dent al hygi eni sts receive a conprehensive education, are
licensed and regulated by the state, and nust meet continuing
education and cardi opul nonary resuscitation (CPR) requirenents.
She opined that dental hygienists are not being utilized to ful
potenti al . The Al aska State Board of Dental Examners (“the
Board”) is in support of HB 136, and has concluded that the
proposed changes are consistent with its vision of ensuring that
all Al askans receive the best possible care. She pointed out
that HB 136 has received support from nunerous nenbers of the
O al Health Coalition, including the Alaska Primary Care
Associ ation, and AARP.

M5. VWALDEN, referring to Section 1 of HB 136, stated that the
restorative function license endorsenent creates an efficient
heal t hcare delivery system that increases the nunber of patients
seen. If the dentist is able to bring a dental hygienist and a
dental assistant when traveling to rural areas, this would allow
nore procedures to be conpleted in the tine available. The
procedures would be perfornmed under the direct supervision of a
licensed dentist, and the dental hygienist would be trained in
t hese procedures. This endorsement would require separate
[ i censing. She pointed out that the curriculum exam ning, and
licensing for restorative functions for dental hygienists has
been established in other states, including Washi ngton Stat e.

M5. WALDEN then referred to Section 2 of HB 136, explaining that
this allows dental hygienists to admnister |ocal anesthesia
under general supervision of a licensed dentist. She stated
that dental hygienists have been admi nistering |ocal anesthesia
under direct or in-direct supervision since 1981. Loca
anesthesia is used to reduce stress and provide pain control in
the treatnent of noderate to advanced gum disease. She
expl ai ned that under general supervision, the dentist nust still
di agnose and provide a plan for treatnent, but would not need to
be present in the facility during the treatnent. | daho and
Oregon currently allow dental hygienists to deliver |[ocal

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 19, 2007



anest hesia under general supervision. No disciplinary action
has been taken agai nst these hygienists.

M5. WALDEN t hen noved on to Section 4, stating that this section
has the potential to provide the greatest inpact to Al askan

communi ties. Experienced dental hygienists may enter into a
witten agreenent with a dentist. This agreenent would allow
the dental hygienist to provide services listed wunder the
agreenent w thout supervision, and would all ow access to nursing
homes, schools, and Headstart progranms, anong others. Thi s
agreenment nust be approved by the Board. This is intended to
reach individuals that are not receiving care and to provide
preventative services to increase oral health, in addition to
i ncreasing general health and well -being. She stated that the

changes nmade by HB 136 have been inplenmented in other states,
and have proven to be safe and effective. She opined that the
statutes show dental hygi eni st s’ conti nued pr of essi onal
commitment to working with dentists to provide service to the
publi c.

3:52: 02 PM

| VONNE M LLEA, President, Alaska State Dental Hygi eni st s’
Associ ation (ASHDA), gave a brief history of her experience as a
licensed dental hygienist in Al aska, and stated that she is in
support of HB 136.

3:53: 02 PM

JENNI FER MCELROY, Dental Hygienist, President, Kenai Peninsula
Dental Hygi ene Association, stated that she strongly supports HB

136. She has seen a need for increased access to oral
heal t hcare. In regard to senior dental care, she has seen a
conplete lack of access. She explained that dentists do not

visit nursing or group homes, and residents of these facilities
may be unable to travel to an office for preventative care or
necessary healthcare screenings. She opined that ||icensed
dental hygienists are the key oral health professionals to
deliver care in this type of setting. Screeni ngs perforned by
| icensed dental hygienists can identify oral health care issues
that nay affect overall health. Many villages have a need for
oral healthcare, and residents travel once per year to see a
denti st .

3:54: 35 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 19, 2007



GLENN MARTIN, DDS, stated that he is a practicing public health
dentist, a nmenber of the Anerican Dental Association (ADA) and a
fellow of the Acadeny of GCeneral Dentistry. He gave a brief
history of his work experience in Al aska, which includes tine
spent traveling to villages and providing dental care. Duri ng
the past 15 years, he has traveled to 62 villages, and has 128
weeks of experience practicing dentistry in rural Alaska. He is
currently working in Anchorage, where he is the director of
village travel for Southcentral Foundation Village dinic. He
stated that he strongly supports HB 136, which would enable him
to provide healthcare to nore patients. The coll aborative
agreenent portion of the bill would greatly increase sufficiency
by allow ng dental hygienists to travel to villages prior to the
arrival of the dentist, in order to evaluate school-age children
and perform x-rays and oral screenings to identify needs. He
explained that initial screenings and preventative treatnents
take 1-6 days, depending on village size. Al'lowing the denta

hygi enists to perform these procedures would allow the dentist
to performrestorative and energent needs. This woul d decrease
the tinme needed to conplete children’s dental needs and increase
the time available to address adult dental needs. He stated
that HB 136 would nake a neasurable inpact on access to care,

and urged the passage of this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if dental hygienists are included in
the Washi ngton, Wom ng, Al aska, Mont ana, | daho  Medi cal
Educati on Program ( WAM ) .

DR. MARTI N replied no.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO thanked Dr. Martin for his service. He
shared his belief that Dr. Martin's presence in the villages was
beneficial to individuals that would not have enjoyed the
“pl easure of good health” w thout these efforts.

3:57:57 PM

ROYANN ROYER, Dental Hygienist, began by giving a brief history
of her experience as a dental hygienist, and stated that she is
a nenber of the Oral Health Coalition, which is in support of HB
136. She inforned the nenbers that she worked as a restorative
dent al hygienist for two years in Wshington State, and
therefore has first-hand know edge of the effectiveness this
expanded function can provide. She explained that if passed, HB
136 would significantly increase the nunber of patients that can
be seen during a typical village visit. She agreed with earlier
testinmony that these visits currently take one week. Al'l ow ng

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- March 19, 2007



the dental hygi enists to do the initial screenings and
preventative procedures, the dentist would have nore tine to
performrestorative procedures. As an educator, she opined that
the collaborative agreenent function could be incorporated into
the curriculum and enphasis placed on utilizing this function
for servicing patients in nursing honmes, and disabled, homne-

bound patients. She stated that externships would nost |ikely
be devel oped with practitioners working in these facilities, and
students would be nentored into these positions. She opi ned

that while some hygienists do not want to work full-tinme, there
are many who would wutilize this expanded function to visit
limted-access areas for a few hours during the day to provide
services. She pointed out that HB 136 can be put into practice
i mredi atel y. The restorative aspect would require additional
trai ning; however, the University of Alaska Anchorage (UAA) is
ready to develop and inplenent restorative courses as soon as
the legislation is passed. The initial courses would be
presented in a condensed format, to allow currently |I|icensed
hygi enists to receive this training in a short anmount of tinme.

4:01:49 PM

DAVI D LOGAN, DDS, Menber, Al aska Dental Society (ADS). The ADS
would like to see the scope of HB 136 broadened to hel p increase

access to dental <care in under-served areas. The ADS is
concerned that if this is limted only to dental hygienists,
this would restrict the use of other dental auxiliaries in the
af orenenti oned areas. He explained that the ADS fornmed a non-
profit in order to provide volunteer treatnent in rural areas.
There is limted equipnment available, and the plan involves
bringing dental assistants rather than hygienists. Al'l owi ng
assistants to perform expanded functions wuld provide a
val uabl e asset. He pointed out that 17 other states allow

auxiliaries to perform additional functi ons, addi ng that
Washi ngton State is the only one to limt this to hygienists.
Additionally, the ADS would |like to see additional training
al | oned. The Anmerican Dental Association (ADA) is bringing
pilot prograns into different states, and the ADS would like to
be involved in this. Legislation is needed to authorize this.

CHAI R OLSON asked whether the ADS considered an additional piece
of legislation for this. He opined that because denta

assistants are not regulated, this mght slow the passage of the
bill.

DR. LOGAN replied that this has been considered; however, the
ADS believes that assistants and hygienists need to be held to

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 19, 2007



the same standards, therefore it is appropriate to address this
wi thin the sane |egislation.

CHAIR OLSON reiterated that this mght have a negative affect on
t he passage of HB 136.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS restated his earlier question regarding
the difference between a dental assistant and dental hygienist.

DR. LOGAN explained that dental assistants are not regul ated,
and are “loosely defined” as a person who works with a dentist.
Dental assistants provide the following auxiliary functions:
pl acenent of rubber danms, handing tools to the dentist, and
perform ng sone inpressions.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS conmmented that a dental assistant is not
very well defined. He stated that he does not want to sl ow down
the aid to villages in need of dental healthcare while
attenpting to incorporate a “loosely defined” group.

DR. LOGAN replied that dental assistants are |oosely defined as
a result of limted access to training. Wile sone states have
decided to certify dental assistants, others have not. Al aska
has elected to not require this certification. If all denta
assistants were required to receive certification, it would be
difficult for smaller communities to nmeet these requirenents.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS opined that these issues need to be
addressed prior to allowing dental assistants to perform these
expanded functions. Wiile he is in favor of increasing the
nunber of dental professionals working in rural conmmunities, he
is not confortable with expanding the role of dental assistants
at this tine.

4:09: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVMAN inquired as to whether Dr. Logan had
previously stated that dental hygienists should be independently
| i censed.

DR. LOGAN replied no.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked whether states currently allow the

i ndependent licensing of dental hygienists, thus allow ng them
to work independently froma dentist’s office.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 19, 2007



DR. LOGAN shared his wunderstanding that this is allowed in
Col or ado.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked whether Dr. Logan woul d support this
in Al aska, considering the previous testinony.

DR. LOGAN replied that conceptually, parts of this “nake sense.”
However, he is unable to give an endorsenent to sonething that
he is unable to see or exam ne

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether Dr. Logan sees a downside to
allowing dental hygienists to perform the additional functions
included in the bill.

DR. LOGAN replied that he has no problens with the restorative
functions. In regard to the collaborative agreenent, he said
that there is sone concern with certain procedures allowed, in
addition to allowing dental hygienists to render a diagnosis.
Al'l ow ng general supervision for admnistering |ocal anesthesia
“has its nmerits.”

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether there are any specific
concerns.

DR. LOGAN replied that the |argest concern is with collaborative
agreenent, which allows the dental hygienist to render a
di agnosi s.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether dental assistants should be
allowed to do this

DR. LOGAN replied no, adding that this would “certainly not be
appropriate.”

CHAI R OLSON asked whether the House Health, Educati on and Soci al
Services Standing Conmttee was asked to incorporate dental
assistants into the bill.

DR. LOGAN replied yes. In response to an additional question,
he stated that the request was denied, although he does not
remenber hearing a specific reason for this.

4:14: 38 PM

MARY CERNEY, Dental Hygienist, gave a brief history of her work

experi ence. She stated that she previously served as president
of the Al aska State Dental Hygienists’ Association (ASDHA), and

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- March 19, 2007



served eight years on the Board of Dental Exam ners. She stated
strong support of HB 136. She agreed that dental assistants are
not regqul at ed. Dental hygienists receive a formal education in
progr ams t hat are accredited by the American Dent al
Association’s (ADA) Council on Dental Accreditation. Dent al
hygi eni sts mnust pass a national board exam and nust prove
conpetency on an independently admnistered clinical exam in
order to practice in all 50 states. She explained that she is
an examning hygienist with the Wstern Regional Exam ning

Boar d. The education received by dental hygienists is usually
two years of college prerequisites, and two academc years
integrated with clinical instruction. Faculty is also subject

to standards and qualifications.

M5. CERNEY went on to say that dental hygienists nmust naintain
good standing, and conplete continuing education requirenents.
This sets a baseline of education and qualifications for all
hygi eni st s. The Wstern Regional Examining Board gives a
specific exam for the restorative clinical skills. Any
hygi eni st performng these functions would be required to take
this exam She stated that the idea of expanding the setting in
which the local anesthetic is admnistered was proposed by Dr.
Logan when he was president of the Board of Dental Exam ners.
She expl ained the situations in which this mght occur, pointing
out that the dentist is not required to allow this. In
sumat i on, she comented that the proposed changes inprove the
healthcare delivery to residents of Alaska, help naintain
education standards currently in place, assure the conpetency by

requiring clinic exans, and nandate accountability. In regard
to admnistering anesthetic, she stated that the dentist has
recommended this treatnent. The coll aborative care agreenent

gives the authorization by the dentist with whom the agreenent
is initiated, and nust be approved by the Board. She expl ai ned
that this does not allow the hygienist to diagnose or offer

treatment plans. The hygienist would sinply be allowed to
perform the hygiene portion of what is normally done, w thout
the dentist providing a prior diagnosis. This is “just

flipping the order of things a little bit.”

M5. CERNEY offered her understanding that proposed regulations
would require the hygienist to have additional training in
energency nedi cal procedures. She supports the requirenent that
hygi eni sts have at I|east 4,000 hours of docunmented clinical
experience prior to being allowed to enter into a collaborative
agreenent . Referring to a program to open in Fairbanks, she
stated that the intent is to graduate hygienists with a strong
enphasis in a variety of health settings, and to encourage

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 19, 2007



treatment in conmunities that do not receive a broad scope of
dental treatnment. She shared her experience volunteering at the
Salvation Arny Cdinic in Fairbanks, and expressed frustration
that she has been unable to admi nister |ocal anesthetic to nake
pati ents confortable. She opined that many of these patient
have experienced neglect and need nore thorough treatnent than
the patients seen at a highly established practice. | f dental
hygi enists were able to admnister |ocal anesthetic under
general supervision, the patients could be seen regardl ess of
whet her a dentist was willing to volunteer on a particul ar day.

4:23:23 PM

MARI E DARLIN, Coordinator, Capital Cty Task Force, Al aska AARP
expressed support for HB 136. The AARP believes that al
Al askans should have access to high quality, af f ordabl e
heal t hcare, including oral health. The AARP al so believes that
HB 136 would help reduce dental costs, as well as inprove
accessibility.

CHAIR OLSON stated that he had planned to hold the bill over
until the next commttee hearing; however, he has not heard any
significant concerns.

4:25:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH stated that if the dental community is in
support of the legislation, he is in support, and does not see
any reason to hold it over.

CHAI R OLSON stated that while he would be willing to help draft
| egislation to address specific concerns, he is not supportive
of any additions to HB 136. He opined that this would be
“counter productive.”

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that he would like to see nore
peopl e capable of provi ding dental healthcare to rural
comunities, adding that he would | ook forward to assisting the
dental community in broadening this at a |later date.

4:27:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN suggested that independent 1icensing of
dental hygienists be considered. He surmsed that this would
pronote conpetition and better rates for preventative care.

4:28:41 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- March 19, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noved to report HB 136 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 136 was reported from the
House Labor and Commerce Standing Comm ttee.

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:29:11 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- March 19, 2007



